
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Pensions Committee 

 
THURSDAY, 18TH JUNE, 2009 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: THE ADVISOR WILL BRIEF ALL MEMBERS OF THE PENSIONS 

COMMITTEE, PRIOR TO THE MEETING, AT 18:30HRS. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors C. Harris (Chair), Thompson (Vice-Chair), Beacham, B. Harris, 

Mallett, Wilson and Winskill 
 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: David Fishman, Howard Jones, Roger Melling and Earl 

Ramharacksingh 
 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be 
considered under agenda item 12 (for unrestricted items) and agenda item 16 (for 
exempt items). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 10)  
 
 To confirm and sign the minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 19 March 2009 

and the special Pensions Committee held on 30 April 2009. 
 

5. PENSION FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 
2009, AUDIT PLAN AND BUDGET 2009/10  (PAGES 11 - 50)  

 
 Report of the Chief Financial Officer to consider the Pension Fund’s financial 

statements for the year ending 31st March 2009, which have been prepared with the 
aim of giving clear and concise information about the financial affairs of the Pension 
Fund to trustees, the public and other stakeholders. The Audit Plan of our external 
auditors, Grant Thornton and the 2009/10 Pension Fund budget are also reported. 
 

6. ACTUARIAL FUNDING UPDATE AS AT 31 MARCH 2009  (PAGES 51 - 66)  
 
 Report of the Chief Financial Officer to report the results of the interim actuarial 

funding update as at 31 March 2009. 
 

7. QUARTERLY ASSET ALLOCATION REVIEW  (PAGES 67 - 80)  
 
 Report of the Chief Financial Officer to review the Fund’s asset allocation position. 

 
8. FUND PERFORMANCE UPDATE  (PAGES 81 - 96)  
 
 Report of the Chief Financial Officer to consider the latest investment performance 

data for the Pensions Fund and for each of the Fund’s investment managers. The 
report sets out fund performance to end of March 2009, compares responsible 
investments information provided by our Fund Managers and LAPFF and reports 
budget management to end of April 2009 (period 1). 
 
 
 



 

3 

9. ATTENDANCE BY FUND MANAGERS    
 
10. FUND ADMINISTRATION UPDATE  (PAGES 97 - 104)  
 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, People and Organisational Development to 

consider regulatory changes affecting the administration of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme together with relevant issues covered in circulars issued by the 
Local Government Pensions Committee (LGPC) and Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG). 
 

11. ADMISSION OF ONTIME PARKING SOLUTIONS LTD. TO THE HARINGEY 
PENSION FUND  (PAGES 105 - 108)  

 
 Report of the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Chief Executive, People and 

Organisational Development, to approve the admission of Ontime Parking Solutions 
Ltd as a transferee admitted body participating in the Haringey Council Pension Fund 
from 1st June 2009. 
 

12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of urgent business admitted under agenda item 2 above. 

 
13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 The following item is likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and 

public from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a 
of the Local Government Act 1972; namely information relating to the business or 
financial affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information). 
 

14. EXEMPT MINUTES  (PAGES 109 - 112)  
 
 To confirm and sign the exempt minutes of the special Pensions Committee, 30 April 

2009. 
 

15. REVIEWING THE POSITION OF A FUND MANAGER  (PAGES 113 - 122)  
 
 Report of the Chief Financial Officer to review the position of a Fund Manager. 

 
16. EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any exempt items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Helen Jones 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 020 8489 2615 
Fax: 020 8489 2660  
Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk 
 
10 June 2009 



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 

 
Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Adje, Beacham, Basu, Butcher, Thompson and 

Wilson 
 

 
Also Present: David Fishman, Howard Jones, Roger Melling and  

Earl Ramharacksignh 
 

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 

BY 

 

PRPP73. 

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies for lateness were received from Cllr Basu. 
 

 
 

PRPP74. 

 
URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
 

PRPP75. 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Cllr Adje declared a personal interest as a contributing member of the 
Haringey Pension Scheme. 
 
Cllr Butcher declared a personal interest as a contributing member of the 
Haringey Pension Scheme. 
 
Cllr Rahman Khan declared a personal interest as a contributing 
member of the Haringey Pension Fund and also for attending various 
training events, conferences, seminars, etc, from time to time, at which 
some of the Fund Managers, the Custodian, investment adviser or 
actuary may have contributed directly or indirectly. 
 
Cllr Thompson declared a personal interest in respect of his membership 
of the Haringey Pension Scheme. He also declared a personal interest in 
respect of his attendance at training events and conferences, to which 
some of the Fund Managers may have directly contributed. 
 
Cllr Wilson declared a personal interest in respect of his employment by 
the National Association of Pension Funds. 
 

 
 

PRPP76. 

 
MINUTES  

 RESOLVED 

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2009 be agreed and 
signed by the Chair, subject to the following corrections: 
 

i) That “Howard Jones and Melling” be removed from the list of 
Councillors attending. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 
 

ii) That “Cllr Thompson declared a personal interest in respect of 
his membership of the Haringey Pension Scheme. He also 
declared a personal interest in respect of his attendance at 
training events and conferences, to which some of the Fund 
Managers may have directly contributed.” be added to the 
declarations of interest. 

 

PRPP77. 

 
FUND PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 The Chief Financial Officer presented this report, which set out fund 
performance to the end of December 2008, compared responsible 
investments information provided by our Fund Managers and LAPFF 
and reported budget management to the end of January 2009 (period 
10). It was reported that overall performance for the quarter to the end of 
December 2008 was above benchmark and above target.  
 
The Committee was advised that Hewitts had recently downgraded one 
of our Fund Managers. A further report would be provided to the 
Committee on this issue, following further discussion with Hewitts. 
 
It was reported that some Pension Funds were involved in legal action 
against RBS in relation to the share issue statement made in June 2008; 
Haringey was considering its position in respect of this matter, and a 
further report would be provided to Committee Members on this issue. 
 
The Committee requested that performance data for Fund Managers 
over a longer time period be provided in future reports for ease of 
comparison, and that performance data for a previous Fund Manager for 
the Haringey Pension Fund, Wellington Management, also be provided. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

i) That the Fund performance position as at end December 2008 
be noted. 

 
ii) That responsible investments information provided be noted. 

 
iii) That the budget management position to the end of January 

2009 (period 10) be noted. 
 
 

 
 

PRPP78. 

 
ATTENDANCE BY FUND MANAGERS  

 The Committee received presentations from four Fund Managers as 
follows: 
 
CAPITAL 

 

Fund performance for the equities mandate was 4.18% below the target 
in annualised terms in the 21-month period to the end of December 
2008. 
 

 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 
 

Fund performance for the bonds mandate was 3.96% below the target in 
annualised terms for the 21-month period to the end of December 2008. 
 
Capital explained the reasons for current performance and answered 
questions from Trustees. 
 
The Committee asked whether Capital was considering taking any legal 
action against RBS. Capital confirmed that this was not something that 
they were considering. Capital reported that they had learnt from the 
experience and that they were confident in their remaining holdings. The 
Committee requested that Capital supply details of the price at which 
they had purchased HBoS shares when they had exercised their rights. 
 
The Committee asked for Capital’s opinion on bonuses. Capital 
responded that the previous bonus system in the financial sector had 
encouraged risk-taking, and that they would support a more sensible, 
longer-term bonus structure.  
 
The Committee asked about Capital’s arrangements for looking at 
corporate governance arrangements. Capital reported that this formed 
an integral part of their research into companies, and that it was their 
duty as long term shareholders to challenge any areas of concern.  
 
The Committee urged Capital to take further action to improve their 
performance for the next time they attended the Committee. 
 
ING 

 

Fund performance was 0.5% above the target in annualised terms in the 
21-month period to the end of December 2008. 
 
ING explained the reasons for current performance and answered 
questions from Trustees. 
 
Cllr Basu arrived at 19:45hrs.  
 
The Committee noted the presentation and replies to questions thereto. 
 
FIDELITY 

 

Fund performance for the equities mandate was 0.9% below the target in 
annualised terms in the 21-month period to the end of December 2008.  
 
Fund performance for the bond mandate was 1.6% below the target in 
annualised terms in the 21-month period to the end of December 2008. 
 
Fidelity explained the reasons for current performance and answered 
questions from Trustees. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee about why the dialogue 
between Fidelity and RBS had not produced results, Fidelity reported 
that they had begun to engage with RBS at an early stage, before there 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 
 

was wider support from other organisations in the sector.  
 
The Committee noted the presentation and replies to questions, and 
expressed the hope that performance would improve in the next quarter. 
 
BERNSTEIN 

 

Fund performance for the global equities mandate was 14.6% below the 
target in annualised terms for the 21-month period to the end of 
December 2008.  
 
Fund performance for the UK equities mandate was 8.94% below the 
target in annualised terms for the 21-month period to the end of 
December 2008. 
 
Bernstein explained the reasons for current performance and answered 
questions from Trustees. 
 
The Committee asked whether Bernstein was considering taking any 
legal action against RBS. Bernstein confirmed that this was not 
something that they were able to comment on. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, Bernstein confirmed that 
they took corporate governance issues very seriously in their research, 
and would challenge and raise concerns where this was necessary.  
  
The Committee hoped that Bernstein would take all possible actions to 
improve their performance for the next time they attended the 
Committee. 
 
 

PRPP79. 

 
FUND ADMINISTRATION UPDATE  

 Ian Benson, Pensions Manager, presented the Fund administration 
update, which set out regulatory changes affecting the administration of 
the Local Government Pension Scheme together with relevant issues 
covered in circulars issued by the Local Government Pensions 
Committee (LGPC) and Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG). 
 
In response to a question from the Committee on the merger talks 
between CONEL and Enfield College, it was confirmed that the bulk 
transfer payment tp be agreed by the fund actuary would protect the 
fund against the liabilities being transferred from Enfield Council fund. 
 
In response to a question from the Committee as to whether the number 
of early retirements had increased, it was agreed that Ian Benson would 
provide the Committee with early retirement figures for the last three 
years outside the meeting. It was agreed that the quarterly report on 
early retirements would include the equivalent reported data for the 
previous quarter. 
 

 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 
 

The Chair emphasised the importance of the actuary’s testing of the 
quality of data being provided by the employing bodies for actuarial 
purposes. The Chair also requested information on how the 
Government’s Compensation arrangements in relation to the regulatory 
bodies’ maladministration in supervising Equitable Life impacts on fund 
members who contributed to the in-house Equitable Life AVC Scheme. 
The Chair also asked for the number of Councillors eligible to join the 
LGPS to be included in the next report.  
 
In response to a question from the Chair, John Hardy, Head of Finance – 
Budget Management, Treasury and Pensions, confirmed that he had 
personally looked into the receipt of contributions from the Employing 
Bodies and School Payroll Providers, and confirmed that these were 
being received by the deadline. The Chair also asked Ian Benson to 
confirm as to whether the records of the consultation with the staff side 
were held, and to confirm that he was satisfied that appeals were 
conducted in compliance with all relevant guidelines; Ian Benson 
confirmed that this was the case in both instances. 
 
In relation to the Compliance Statement appended to the report, the 
Chair requested that surveys be commenced at the earliest opportunity 
in order to ensure compliance. Ian Benson reported that work to 
implement surveys was currently underway. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That the Administration Report update be noted. 
 
 
 

PRPP80. 

 
ADMISSION AGREEMENT FOR WORKFORCE FACILITIES LTD  

 Ian Benson, Pensions Manager, presented this report, which 
recommended the admission of Workforce Facilities Ltd as a transferee 
admitted body to the Haringey Pension Fund from 1st April 2009, 
following the TUPE transfer of security staff employed by Mittie Security 
Services.  
 
In response to questioning by the Chair, the Chief Financial Officer 
confirmed that he was satisfied with the content of the report, 
safeguarding the interest of all stakeholders, particularly the Pension 
Fund. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

i) That Workforce Facilities Ltd be admitted as a transferee 
admitted body to the Fund from 1st April 2009. 

 
ii) That the agreement be a closed agreement such that no new 

members can be admitted. 
 

iii) That the contractor be required to provide a Bond to the value 

 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2009 
 

of £26,000 to be reviewed by the Fund actuary on an annual 
basis. 

 
iv) That the final approval to the terms of the Admission 

Agreement be delegated to the Chief Financial Officer. 
 
 

PRPP81. 

 
ANY NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no new items of urgent business. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 6



UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 30 APRIL 2009 

 
Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Beacham and Thompson 
 
Apologies Councillors Adje, Basu, Butcher, Melling, David Fishman and Earl 

Ramharacksingh 
 

 
In attendance Howard Jones 
 
 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 

BY 

 

PRPP82. 

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Adje, Cllr Basu and Cllr 
Butcher and from David Fishman, Roger Melling and Earl 
Ramharacksingh. 
 
NOTED 

 

 
 

PRPP83. 

 
URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
 

PRPP84. 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Cllr Rahman Khan declared a personal interest as a contributing 
member of the Haringey Pension Fund and also for attending various 
training events, conferences, seminars, etc, from time to time, at which 
some of the Fund Managers, the Custodian, investment adviser or 
actuary may have contributed directly or indirectly. 
 
Cllr Thompson declared a personal interest in respect of his membership 
of the Haringey Pension Scheme. He also declared a personal interest in 
respect of his attendance at training events and conferences, to which 
some of the Fund Managers may have directly contributed. 
 
NOTED 

 

As this was the last meeting of the Committee for the municipal year, the 
Chair thanked all the Members, Howard, Hewitts and officers for their 
assistance and significant contribution to the Committee during the past 
year. 
 

 
 

PRPP85. 

 
ASSET ALLOCATION REVIEW  

 The Chief Financial Officer introduced a report on the review of decision 
making on asset allocation, which had been produced in response to a 
request for further information by the Committee following a presentation 
by Hewitts on proposals for an asset rebalancing strategy at the meeting 
of the Committee on 29 January 2009.  

 
 

Page 7



UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 30 APRIL 2009 
 

 
David Crum, Hewitts, reported that, while setting the investment strategy 
was the most significant investment decision for the Committee, it was 
important to monitor movements in the portfolio across asset classes in 
the meantime, and for the Committee to have the opportunity to make 
any adjustments felt appropriate. It was felt that this approach would 
benefit the Trust in the long term and would add value. David Lynch, 
Hewitts, outlined how the modelling in the report was carried out.  
 
The Committee asked how the proposed system would operate in 
practice. Mr Crum reported that, for each asset class, bands such as 
10% above or below benchmark would be agreed in advance with the 
Committee, to provide limits for any proposed changes. Hewitts would 
present and discuss their advice with the Committee at its quarterly 
meetings, and the Committee would then decide whether or not it wished 
to act on the advice provided. If the Committee agreed to act on the 
recommendations, Hewitts would work with the  Chief Financial Officer 
to make the agreed changes. In response to a query from the 
Committee, it was clarified that if the Committee did not agree to act on 
the advice of Hewitts, no follow up action would be carried out. If an 
urgent change was necessary that could not wait until the next 
Committee meeting, authority would be delegated to the Chief Financial 
Officer to act in consultation with the Chair, but it was emphasised that 
this provision was for emergency situations only. 
 
In response to a question on the advice taken into consideration as part 
of the modelling exercise, Mr Lynch responded that advice relating to 
specific types of hedge fund and commodities had not been included in 
the exercise, as it was unlikely that this would be relevant to the Pension 
Fund. Howard Jones, the Fund’s Independent Advisor, stated that it 
would be beneficial for the Fund to have increased flexibility in relation to 
the selection of asset classes and to have the capability to react to 
market movement. The Committee would have the opportunity to review 
whether they wished to make any changes on a quarterly basis, but 
would be under no obligation to make changes if they decided not to. At 
this point, the Chair mentioned that investment in Hedge Funds was out 
of the question at the present moment and was outside the remit of this 
report.  
  
The Chair emphasised that while Hewitts provided the Committee with 
advice, the Pension Fund was the responsibility of the Trustees. The 
Chair noted that he had raised concerns regarding the fee to be paid for 
the proposed service, as he felt that the contract with Hewitts should 
have been comprehensive, but accepted the advice of the Chief 
Financial Officer that the proposed work fell outside the scope of the 
contract. The Chair also added that he did not wish any delay in making 
a decision on the asset allocation proposal to have an adverse impact on 
the Fund. Taking into account the comments and direction of the Head 
of Legal Services that the Committee should give full consideration of 
the financial advice received, the Chair highlighted the professional 
opinion of the Chief Financial Officer as set out in the report. Considering 
the comments of the Head of Legal Services and the Chief Financial 

Page 8



UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 30 APRIL 2009 
 

Officer, the Chair gave the view that he agreed with the 
recommendations of the report. 
 
RESOLVED 

 

i) That an active asset allocation rebalancing strategy be 
introduced on a quarterly basis as set out in the report. 

 
ii) That the asset allocation review service be provided by Hewitt 

and that the budget be amended to reflect this. 
 

iii) That decisions be delegated to the Chief Financial Officer in 
consultation with the Chair of the Pensions Committee, if any 
asset allocation changes need revising urgently in between 
quarterly meetings of the Pensions Committee. 

 
iv) That the outcome of the procurement process for a passive 

Fund manager be noted. 
 
 

PRPP86. 

 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 RESOLVED 

 

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
consideration of item 7 as it contains exempt information as defined in 
Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by 
Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1985); namely information 
relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 
 

 
 

PRPP87. 

 
REVIEWING THE POSITION OF A FUND MANAGER  

 The Committee considered the report of the Chief Financial Officer. 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 20:35hrs. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Agenda Item 7Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Agenda Item 10Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Agenda Item 11Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14Page 109
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15Page 113
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Draft open minutes - 30 Apr 09 - approved by Chair

	5 Pension Fund Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2009, Audit Plan and Budget 2009/10
	6 Actuarial Funding Update as at 31 March 2009
	7 Quarterly Asset Allocation review
	8 Fund Performance Update
	10 Fund Administration Update
	11 Admission of Ontime Parking Solutions Ltd. to the Haringey Pension Fund
	14 Exempt minutes
	15 Reviewing the Position of a Fund Manager

